O.A. 5.9-91 FILET SID J. VIHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, STAN TOURT

By Del ty Clerk

CASE NO. 76, 198
WILLIAM BERRY,
PETITIONER,

-VERSUS-

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,
RESPONDENT.

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON THE MERITS

ARTHUR CARTER, ESQUIRE
SPECIAL ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
AT
SUITE 306
1399 N.W. 17th Avenue
MIAMI, FLORIDA 33125

LAW OFFICES OF MARIA BREA LIPINSKI JOHN H. LIPINSKI OF COUNSEL AT POST OFFICE BOX 97-0679 MIAMI, FLORIDA 33197-0679 (305) 253-7557

INTRODUCTION

THE PETITIONER WAS THE APPELLANT IN THE DISTRICT COURT AND THE DEFENDANT IN THE TRIAL COURT. THE RESPONDENT WAS THE APPELLEE IN THE DISTRICT COURT AND THE PROSECUTION IN THE TRIAL COURT. THE PARTIES WILL BE
REFERRED TO AS THEY STAND IN THIS COURT. RECORD REFERENCES WILL BE BY
THE LETTER "R". REFERENCES TO THE TRIAL TRANSCRIPTS WILL BE BY THE LETTER
"T". REFERENCES TO THE DISTRICT COURT'S OPINION (INCLUDED IN PETITIONER'S
APPENDIX) WILL BE BY THE LETTER "A". ALL EMPHASIS IS ADDED UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

THE DEFENDANT WAS CHARGED BY INFORMATION WITH THE CRIMES OF SEXUAL BATTERY (3 COUNTS) AND POSSESSION OF A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES (R. 7).

THE DEFENDANT FILED MOTIONS TO SUPPRESS PHYSICAL EVIDENCE (R. 25) and Statements (R. 26).

THE DEFENDANT MOVED TO STRIKE OTHER CRIMES EVIDENCE (R. 28).

THE DEFENDANT, AT TRIAL, WAS CONVICTED OF SEXUAL BATTERY (1 COUNT) AND POSSESSION OF A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE.

The defendant was sentenced outside the sentencing guidelines to 15 years imprisonment on the basis that he abused his familial authority and trust (R. 64).

THIS APPEAL FOLLOWS.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

AT THE TRIAL THE FOLLOWING FACTS WERE ELICITED:

Beautiful Barrier The Defendant's Daughter (T. 337) was 19, Almost 20, At the time of the Offense (T. 336-337).

SHE LIVED WITH HER MOTHER (T. 336) AND HARDLY EVER SAW THE DEFENDANT AFTER THE DEFENDANT SEPERATED FROM HER MOTHER (T. 339).

ON THE DATE OF THE INCIDENT, SHE WENT, WITH HER BOYFRIEND AND SON, TO THE DEFENDANT'S APARTMENT TO VISIT THE DEFENDANT (T. 347). DURING THE VISIT, THEY LOOKED AT FAMILY PICTURE ALBUMS (T. 352), RAN AN ERRAND WITH THE DEFENDANT (T. 354), WENT SWIMMING (T. 358), AND WAS GIVEN CLOTHES BY CLESTE, THE DEFENDANT'S GIRLFRIENT (T. 361).

DURING THE EVENING, THE DEFENDANT USED COCAINE (T. 349).

LATER, IN THE EVENING, THE DEFENDANT INVITED HER AND HER BOYFRIEND TO STAY THE NIGHT, BUT HER BOYFRIEND REFUSED. BETTER ACCEPTED THE DEFEND-

WHILE B WAS IN THE BATHROOM PUTTING ON HER NIGHTGOWN, SHE TESTIFIED THAT THE DEFENDANT ENTERED AND TRIED TO LIFE IT, WHICH SHE RESISTED (T. 371).

THE DEFENDANT THEN TOOK BETTER INTO THE BEDROOM WHERE HE HIT HER ON THE BUTTOCKS WITH A CLOTHES HANGER (T. 381), THEN COMMITTED SEX ACTS ON HER (T. 389-395).

SHE CONSIDERED RUNNING AWAY, BUT COULDN'T BECAUSE HER SON WAS THERE AND SHE DIDN'T WANT TO LEAVE HIM (T. 383).

LATER, THE DEFENDANT TOOK BEACK TO HER MOTHER'S HOUSE (T. 399). HER BOYFRIEND AND SISTER TOOK HER TO THE RAPE TREATMENT CENTER (T. 401) WHERE SHE WAS EXAMINED (T. 403) AND TOLD BOTH THE DOCTOR (T. 404) AND DETECTIVE TABER (T. 405) WHAT HAD HAPPENED.

CELESTE HOLMES LIVED WITH THE DEFENDANT AT THE TIME OF THE INCIDENT (T. 452). THAT EVENING, SHE SAW BEATT THE BATHROOM, THE DEFEND ANT BEHIND HER (T. 461). CELESTE WENT INTO THE LIVING ROOM, WHILE THEY WENT TO THE BEDROOM (T. 463). SHE LATER WENT TO THE BEDROOM AND SAW BOTH ON THE BED, NAKED AND CRYING (T. 467). THE DEFENDANT ASKED HER IF SHE WANTED TO SUCH BOTH SHE REFUSED (T. 468).

SHE THEN LEFT. WHEN THE POLICE CAME TO ARREST THE DEFENDANT, THE DEFENDANT ASKED CELESTE TO "STICK BY HIM" (T. 477).

RAPE TREATMENT CENTER. YEARS BEFORE WHEN THE DEFENDANT LIVED AT HOME WITH THE FAMILY, THE DEFENDANT HAD PERFORMED SEX ACTS WITH HER (T. 543, 545, 547, 549).

MARKS ON BUTTOCKS AT THE RAPE TREATMENT CENTER (T. 563). HER DAUGHTER, THE HAD, YEARS BEFORE RUN AWAY AFTER SHE SAID THAT THE DEFENDANT ATTEMPTED TO HAVE SEX WITH HER (T. 568).

DETECTIVE THOMAS TABER OBTAINED SPECIMEN SAMPLES TAKEN FROM B

AT THE RAPE TREATMENT CENTER (T. 582), INTERVIEWED BEAUTY (T. 583), SAW MARKS ON HER BUTTOCKS (T. 592) AND OBTAINED A FORMAL STATEMENT FROM BEAUTY (T. 537).

HE THEN OBTAINED A SEARCH WARRANT FOR THE DEFENDANT'S APARTMENT (T. 593) WHICH HE SERVED (T. 596) SEIZING SEVERAL ITEMS (T. 605) INCLUDING WHITE POWDER (T. 607).

HE OBTAINED A FORMAL STATEMENT FROM CELESTE HOLMES (T. 618). HE ADVISED THE DEFENDANT OF HIS "RIGHTS" (T. 621, 622) AND WAS PRESENT DURING DETECTIVE SIMMONS INTERVIEW OF THE DEFENDANT (T. 624).

LEONARDO BLACKAR EXAMINED BEATTHE RAPE TREATMENT CENTER (T. 630). He INTERVIEWED HER (T. 633) AND SAW MARKS ON HER BUTTOCKS (T. 635).

CRIME LAB TECHNICIAN WALTER BADIE FOUND THE PRESENCE OF COCAINE ON ITEMS TAKEN FROM THE DEFENDANT'S APARTMENT (T. 671).

SEROLOGY CRIME LAB TECHNICIAN TERESA MERIT TESTIFIED THAT NO SPERM WAS FOUND ON THE SWABS/SPECIMENS TAKEN FROM BETTER (T. 690).

DETECTIVE DAVID SIMMONS TESTIFIED THAT HE INTERVIEWED THE DEFENDANT (T. 714) AND THAT THE DEFENDANT WAS ADVISED OF HIS "RIGHTS" (T. 718) AND SIGNED A WRITTEN FORM STATING SO (T. 722).

The defendant then gave a statement admitting the acts (T. 726).

This appeal follows.

QUESTION PRESENTED

Whether The Trial Court Erred In Departing From The Sentencing Guide-Lines ON The Sole Basis Of Abuse Of Familial Authority And Trust When The Victim Was 19, Did Not Live With The Defendant And Was Not In His Custody

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN SENTENCING THE DEFENDANT OUTSIDE (ABOVE)
THE SENTENCING GUIDELINES SOLELY ON THE BASIS OF A VIOLATION OF FAMILIAL
TRUST. THE VICTIM WAS THE DEFENDANT'S EMANCIPATED 19 YEAR-OLD DAUGHTER
WHO DID NOT LIVE WITH THE DEFENDANT. THE CRIME WAS NOT MADE POSSIBLE
DUE TO A BREACH OF TRUST, BUT BECAUSE OF THE VICTIM'S FEAR OF PHYSICAL
VIOLENCE.

ARGUMENT

Ī

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DEPARTING FROM THE SENTENCING GUIDELINES ON THE SOLE BASIS OF ABUSE OF FAMILIAL AUTHORITY AND TRUST WHEN THE VICTIM WAS 19, DID NOT LIVE WITH THE DEFENDANT AND WAS NOT IN HIS CUSTODY

CHARGED WITH THREE COUNTS OF SEXUAL BATTERY, THE DEFENDANT WAS CON-VICTED OF ONLY 1 (IN ADDITION TO POSSESSION OF COCAINE). THE DEFENDANT'S GUIDELINES WAS 4 1/2 TO 5 1/2 YEARS (T. 874).

THE DEFENDANT WAS SENTENCED TO 15YEARS AND 5 YEARS CONSECUTIVELY, TOTALLING 20 YEARS (T. 885). THE DEFENDANT'S SENTENCE WAS, THEREFORE, QUADRUPLED.

THE SOLE REASON GIVEN FOR GUIDELINES DEVIATION (R. 64) WAS THAT THE DEFENDANT ABUSED HIS FAMILIAL AUTHORITY AND TRUST WITH HIS DAUGHTER.

THE SENTENCING TRANSCRIPT IDICATES THE TRIAL COURT WANTED TO SENTENCE THE DEFENDANT HARSHLY (T. 877) EVEN THOUGH HE STATED HE DID NOT SEE ANY LEGAL GROUNDS (T. 878), DID NOT FEEL HE WAS "CONFINED" TO THE EVIDENCE HE HEARD AT TRIAL (T. 881) AND EVIDENTLY BASED PART OF HIS DEVIATION REASONING UPON THE DEFENDANT'S "PATTERN" OF OFFENSE (T. 883).

THE DEFENDANT WAS CHARGED WITH AND CONVICTED OF SEXUAL BATTERY BY MEANS OF PHYSICAL FORCE NOT LIKELY TO CAUSE SERIOUS INJURY (R. 7).

She had not seen the defendant for some time. She was not in the defendant ant's custody. She did not submit to the defendant because he was her father, but because she didn't want to get hit anymore (violence) and wanted to run but could not leave her son (T. 383). Until she was hit, she refused to submit (T. 373).

IN CONTRAST TO THE CASES CITED IN THE COURT'S ORDER, BUILD WAS NOT A MINOR (19), WAS NOT RETARDED, WAS EMANCIPATED WITH A CHILD OF HER OWN, DID NOT LIVE WITH THE DEFENDANT AND WAS NOT IN HIS CUSTODY. SHE DID

NOT SUBMIT DUE TO MENTAL INCAPACITY OR TENDER AGE OR BECAUSE SHE DEPENDED ON THE DEFENDANT. SHE SUBMITTED BECAUSE SHE HAD REFUSED HIS ADVANCES AND HE HIT HER. THE DEFENDANT'S "FAMILIAL AUTHORITY" DID NOT CAUSE HER TO SUBMIT. VIOLENCE AND THE THREAT OF FUTURE VIOLENCE DID.

The defendant submits that his sentence was aggravated/guidelines exceeded solely because the victim was a relative. He submits that that is not a clear and convincing reason for guidelines departure. If it were, any worthless check between cousins would be a basis for departure and a jail sentence. A child (of 18-50) stealing from his parent could be sentenced to the statutory maximum. How many teenage children who steal from their parents (to support a drug habit or otherwise) would face the prospect of prison for their <u>first conviction</u>, <u>like this defendant</u> (he had never previously been adjudicated for a crime).

IN ITS OPINION, THE DISTRICT COURT STATED, IN PERTINENT PART:

IN OUR VIEW THE SAME RULE (AS TO FAMILIAL AUTHORITY) APPLIES NOT WITHSTANDING THAT THE RAPE VICTIM IS THE DEFENDANT'S EMANCIPATED TEEN-AGED DAUGHTER. IT WAS FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIP WHICH BROUGHT THE GIRL, ALONG WITH HER INFANT CHILD, BACK TO HER FATHER'S HOME FOR A VISIT WHERE SHE WAS FORCED TO SUBMIT TO HER FATHER'S ADVANCES UNDER THE THREAT OF VIOLENCE (A. 1-2)

The sole authority cited in the District Court opinion was <u>Gopaul v.</u>

<u>State</u>, 536 So.2d 296 (Fla. 3d DCA 1988), a case in which a 19 year-old assaulted a nineteen-month-old baby cousin while babysitting.

This court in <u>Davis v. State</u>, 517 So.2d 670 (Fla. 1987), found guide-Lines deviation for abuse of amilial trust improper in a case where a Wife killed her husband while he was sleeping in the martial bed finding that:

In the instant case, no particular trust bestowed on Davis by the victim formed the doundation of the crime; the crime was not directly related to a specific trust as in the above cases (P. 674).

DAVIS, IN CONTRAST DID NOT TAKE ADVANTAGE OF A POSITION OF AUTHORITY OVER A VICTIM WHO WAS A YOUNG CHILD (P. 674).

LIKEWISE, IN HALL V. STATE, 517 So.2D 692 (FLA. 1988), THIS COURT FOUND GUIDELINES DEVIATION FOR BREACH OF FAMILIAL TRUST IMPROPER IN A CASE WHERE PARENTS COMMITTED CHILD ABUSE ON THEIR TWO YOUNG CHILDREN.

ALSO, ODOM V. STATE, 15 FLW D1347 (FLA. 5TH DCA 1990), THE COURT FOUND GUIDELINES DEVIATION FOR BREACH OF FAMILIAL TRUST IMPROPER IN A CASE WHERE THE DEFENDANT WAS THE VICTIM'S STEPDAUGHTER AND VICTIM LIVED WITH THE DEFENDANT.

SINCE THE DISTRICT COURT'S DECISION, THIS COURT HAS RULED IN WILSON V. STATE, 15 FLW S429 (FLA. 1990) THAT AN ABUSE OF A POSITION OF FAMILIAL AUTHORITY IS NOT A CLEAR AND CONVINCING REASON TO DEPART FROM THE SENTENCING GUIDELINES. THIS COURT'S HOLDING ON THE PRECISE QUESTION INVOLVED HERE HAVE BEEN FOLLWED (IN PETITIONER'S FAVOR) IN THE DISTRICT COURT OPINIONS OF PERKINSON V. STATE, 16 FLW D295 (FLA. 1ST DCA 1991); LONETT V. STATE, 15 FLW D2790 (FLA. 2D DCA 1990); FLETCHER V. STATE, 16 FLW D93 (FLA. 2D DCA 1991); SANDERS V. STATE, 15 FLW D2709 (FLA. 3D DCA 1990); HARRIS V. STATE, 15 FLW D2111 (FLA. 5TH DCA 1990).

THE POSITION ADVANCED BY PETITIONER AND APPROVED BY THIS COURT IN WILSON V. STATE, SUPRA, IS NOW THE LAW (AS SEEN BY THE ABOVE CITATIONS) IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA.

This cause must be Remanded with directions to Resentence the Petitioner/Defendant within the sentencing guidelines.