DA 5-9-91



IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 76,398

WILLIAM BERRY,

Petitioner,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF CERTIFIED QUESTION

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON THE MERITS

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

MARK S. DUNN Florida Bar #0471852 Assistant Attorney General Department of Legal Affairs 401 N.W. 2nd Avenue Miami, Florida 33128 (305) 377-5441

INTRODUCTION

The Petitioner was the defendant in the trial court below. The Respondent, the State of Florida, was the prosecution. In this brief, the Petitioner will be identified as the "Defendant." Respondent will be identified as the "State." The symbol "T" will be used to designate the transcript of the lower court proceedings. The symbol "R" will be used to designate the record on appeal. The symbol "SR" will be used to designate the supplemental record on appeal. The symbol "P" will be used to designate the page of the Defendant's brief. All emphasis is supplied unless otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The victim in instant cause, the B B testified as follows as to the sexual abuse inflicted upon her by her father. (T. 335-451). She went to her father's abode to show who was at the time him her son, his grandson, W of the crimes 2 years and 4 months old. (T. 339, 345-346). She was accompanied by her son's father, Were Deter, Sr.. (T. 345-346). All three of them wanted to see Defendant. (T. 346). Defendant had never met Werstein Sr., or seen his grandson. (T. The victim testified that prior to this encounter her 346). relationship with her father was relatively nonexistent. (T. 340-341). As she testified: "... I haven't seen him in a long time." (T. 345).

-1-

The Defendant was living with a woman named Celeste. (T. 348). Initially, when they first arrived, Defendant wasn't home. (T. 347-348). As they walked back to their car, W**MARS**, Sr. saw her father. (T. 349). She was happy to see Defendant. (T. 350). He asked them upstairs to his apartment, and as soon as they sat down in the living room to converse, Defendant commenced snorting and smoking cocaine in their presence. (T. 350-352). Celeste stayed out of the way in the bedroom while this transpired. (T. 353).

The evening progressed, until Defendant suggested the victim, W(M), Jr. and W(M) Sr. spend the night. (T. 364-365). It was 11:30 p.m. and W(M) Sr. declined the invitation because he had to go to work. (T. 365). Initially, B(M) declined as well, because she had to baby-sit her brother when her mother left for work at 5:30 a.m.. (T. 365). She ended up staying with the son, and W(M) Sr. left with the car they arrived in. (T. 365).

After W Sr. left, Defendant called her into his bedroom. (T. 366). She knelt at the foot of the bed, and her father asked her "to sniff the cocaine." (T. 366). Defendant "... was sniffing it..." on the bed. (T. 366). B Source did not snort the cocaine, although Defendant wanted her to. (T. 366). Her father told her "...if I take some of it, that it would ease

-2-

my mind, and I told him that I didn't want to mess with it because I don't mess with drugs." (T. 367). Defendant was in his bikini swim trunks, and Celeste also was in the bedroom watching TV while this transpired. (T. 360, 368). Her little son was also present, lying on the bed. (T. 368).

Defendant wanted her to change into one of Celeste's nightgowns. (T. 368-369). She did not want to. (T. 368). Celeste gave her one of her nightgowns, which was thin, sleeveless, with a plunging neckline. (T. 369). Her father wanted her to change into the gown in the bedroom. (T. 370). "He said that I didn't have to be ashamed to change in front of him." (T. 370). She "always feel[s] ashamed to change in front of a man." (T. 370).

She decided to put the gown on, but in the bathroom. (T. 371). As she got off the toilet, Defendant entered the bathroom. (T. 371). He never asked her permission, and closed the door behind him, causing her to feel "uncomfortable." (T. 372). Her father then asked her to lift up her gown. (T. 373). When she didn't respond, he lifted it up. (T. 373). She pulled it back down. (T. 373). Her father then told her to look on the side of the toilet. (T. 373). There was a "...book with naked people in it...," which he picked up and asked her to look at. (T. 374). He made her look at it. (T. 374). He stopped when she told him: "...I don't look at no books like that." (T. 374).

-3-

Her father then asked her to take off the nightgown. (T. 375). When she wouldn't, he walked out of the bathroom to get a belt. (T. 375). She remained in the bathroom, he returned and again told her to take off the nightgown. (T. 375). When she refused, he grabbed her by the arm and pulled her into the bedroom. (T. 375-376). It hurt when he did this. (T. 376). Celeste meanwhile was still watching TV. (T. 376).

Her father then grabbed a coat hanger, causing Celeste to exit the bedroom. (T. 376). B "...got scared." (T. 376). Her father stretched the hanger out double, "the long way, and he hit me with it. He beat me with it." (T. 383). The nightgown was still on, and her son was lying on the bed while Defendant beat her with the hanger. (T. 383). Her son started crying. (T. 384). Her father beat her on the buttocks. (T. 384). It was painful and she was scared, because her father had beaten her in a similar fashion when she was young. (T. 384).

Beneficient told her father she wanted to go home, and he responded she "...wasn't going anywhere." (T. 384). She was scared, considered running out of the room, but couldn't because her son was present and she didn't want to leave him. (T. 385). Defendant again told her to take the nightgown off, which this time she complied with because she didn't want "to get hit anymore." (T. 386). She still had her underwear on. (T. 386).

-4-

Defendant instructed her to remove those as well, which she did. (T. 386). She was now completely naked, her father was clad only in his swimming trunks, and her son was lying on the bed. (T. 386-387).

She then testified as to the actual sexual battery. (T. 387-400). Defendant pushed her on to the bed.¹ (T. 387). Despite her pleas to let her go home, Defendant ordered her to spread her legs. (T. 389-390). She was scared, and Defendant had to force her legs apart. (T. 390). He placed the plate of cocaine between her legs, looked at her vagina, told her how good it looked, and queried how she could have a baby from somebody else. (T. 391-393). While Defendant did this she tried to cover herself with her hands. (T. 392).

Eventually, he pinned her arms down and began to perform oral sex on her vagina. (T. 393). She begged him not to do that and resisted. (T. 394). Defendant's response was to bite her "[b]etween my legs." (T. 394). He finally stopped and snorted some more cocaine. (T. 395). He then "...stuck his finger with the cocaine on it and put it in me." (T. 395). He then "...licked it back out." (T. 395). The cocaine burned her vagina. (T. 395).

-5-

¹ Recall that her little boy was lying on the bed, although he somehow managed to fall asleep. (T. 386-387, 389).

Defendant turned her over, although she tried to resist. (T. 396). He lifted her up to her knees and placed cocaine in her rectum with his finger. (T. 396-397). Again, she felt a burning sensation in her rectum. (T. 397). He licked the cocaine out of her rectum as well. (T. 397).

Celeste entered the room to ask Defendant for some money to go to the store. (T. 399). Defendant told her to suck Beneficient nipples. (T. 399). Celeste refused. (T. 399).

By the type Borner, got home, both her mother and little brother were gone. (T. 401). As soon as she got inside, she tried to sleep. (T. 402). Both her vagina and rectum burned. (T. 402). She didn't call the police right away because she was afraid, but eventually she did. (T. 402). Worker, Sr. showed up around 6:30 a.m., and she told him what had transpired. (T. 402-403). He in turn went and got her older sister Torret, (T. 403).

Barborn showed Tables her buttocks. (T. 403). Tables saw the marks from the coat hanger and Tables and Warborn Sr. took her to the Jackson Memorial Hospital Rape Treatment Center. (T. 404). After being examined and relating to the doctors her father's abuse of her, she was taken to Detective Taber's office. (T. 404-408). While there, she provided a formal statement. (T.

-6-

408). She also exhibited the marks on her buttocks to Detective Taber. (T. 408).

Being s cross-examination was terminated by the following outburst by the Defendant:

THE DEFENDANT: Bernard , didn't you tell me that you got raped by four men and a dog. (T. 447).

The State objected, and both counsels requested a sidebar. (T. 447-448). Defendant's counsel moved to withdraw, which the trial court denied. (T. 448). The State requested Defendant be found in direct contempt, which the trial court did:

THE COURT: Let the record reflect that I believe that the defendant was well aware of the sidebar conversation we had, regarding whether this issue should be brought up. I instructed counsel not to bring it up, counsel went back and explained it to the defendant, and the defendant had to shout it out in front of the jury.

I mean there's not going to be any mistrials. There's no motion.

MS. LeCLAINCHE: And may some curative --

THE COURT: I hold the defendant in contempt of court because I believe he deliberately did that for purposes he thinks it's going to avail him. I don't know. But it's not going to work.

MR. CARTER: I make a motion for mistrial, Your Honor. I renew my motion to withdraw.

THE COURT: Denied.

(T. 449-450).

-7-

The State requested and received a curative instruction to the jury. (T. 450-452).

Celeste Holmes, Defendant's live-in girlfriend at the time of the incident, corroborated B**ernings**s testimony in every material respect. (T. 452-476). Her testimony included the following:

Q. Did there come a time when you went back to the bedroom door again?

A. Yes. I went back, and the third time I knocked, then he came to the door.

Q. Who came to the door?

A. William did.

Q. And what happened?

A. Well, he was upset, you know, he was wondering why I was knocking on the door.

Q. You say he was upset? How was he upset?

A. Like he really, he really wanted -- he was angry with me. He wanted to get like -- shake me apart or something. Like, you know, why am I disturbing him, you know, he's trying to have a discussion with his daughter.

Q. And what happened?

A. I went back into the living room while he was trying to talk to me. He told me, he was telling me about the discussion that he was having.

Q. Before you went back into the living room, when you were standing in the bedroom door with the defendant, could you see anything in the bedroom?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Did you look in there?

A. Yes.

A. What did you see?

A. I saw Bar By I lying on the bed. She didn't have any clothes on.

Q. How was she acting?

A. She was very upset. She was crying.

Q. You looked past the defendant, you saw Belline lying on the bed without any clothes on and crying, what did you do?

A. Well, I didn't do anything. There was nothing I could do. They kept telling me. He went back in the room and I went back to the living room. He didn't let me in.

Q. You didn't try to go in and talk to

A. No. No, because I was afraid to.

(T. 467-468).

Eventually, Defendant called her into the bedroom. He was standing at the foot of the bed, and B**arrents** was naked, lying on the bed crying. (T. 468-469). Defendant asked Celeste if **Barrents** had a beautiful body. (T. 469). Uncertain as to how she was to respond, Celeste answered affirmatively. (T. 470). Defendant asked her if she wanted to suck B**arrents**'s nipples. (T. 470). Celeste was "sick" from this suggestion. (T. 470). She said no, and never performed the act. (T. 470). At one point Defendant told her he was doing what he was supposed to, "...<u>that's</u> what a father is supposed to do, to help raise his daughters." (T. 470).

-9-

Celeste never called the police, because she "...was afraid of what was going to happen after Barbar left." (T. 472). She also corroborated Bernand testimony as to Defendant's drug usage. (T. 473-476). She admitted she partook of the cocaine as well. (T. 474). She also testified how Defendant had related how he sexually abused Barriers s, older sister Territor when he was living in their household. (T. 496-497). As he had told Defendant saw it as his duty as a father to indoctrinate his B "...to make sure that she was prepared for all the other men that daughter came into her life." (T. 497). Defendant had this conversation with Celeste prior to his sexual abuse of B (т. 498). s older sister, The testified in corroboration, again in every material respect, with the testimony of the victim. (T. 538-556). When she got to Mom's house, after being driven there by Warden Sr., she found the victim as follows:

She was in total shock. She was trembling. She was crying. She was upset.

(T. 543).

This saw the marks on Barriers's buttocks from the coat hanger. (T. 543). She took Barriers' to the Rape Treatment Center. (T. 542). Barriers' told Tarriers' that their father had attacked her. (T. 543). The then testified how her father had sexually abused her when she was nine years old. (T. 545-549). The sexual abuse stopped when she was ten, when her father left the household. (T. 549). Defendant apparently returned to the household again when she was thirteen, and resumed his debauchery. (T. 550-551). As a direct consequence of Defendant's decadence, The away from home to live with her grandmother. (T. 551). She finally told her grandmother and aunt what her father had done, and compelled her to reveal such to her mother and Defendant in their presence. (T. 552-554).

No one ever called the police, because Defendant said he would never do it again, and Total believed him, unfortunately. (T. 554). When Borney told her what happened, Total called their mom and told her Defendant did it again. (T. 554). Her mother instructed her to take Borney to the hospital, which she did. (T. 554).

Betweenergy s mom, L(M) M(M) testified in corroboration with the testimony of her daughters. (T. 560-571). Detective Taber, Sexual Battery Unit, Metro-Dade, testified as to Betweenergy s interview and subsequent formal statement. (T. 586-590). Detective Taber also witnessed the marks on Betweenergy buttocks. (T. 593-595).

-11-

All of the evidence seized from Defendant's apartment pursuant to a valid search warrant, corroborated the testimony of the victim. (T. 596-618). This included a Penthouse and/or Playboy in the bathroom, and several items of evidence tied to the use of cocaine. (SR. 1-28/ T. 596-618). Celeste Holmes also provided a formal statement. (T. 620).

Dr. Blachar examined Bission at the Rape Treatment Center, and testified as to the "...horizontal slash marks, which would be consistent with being slapped or whipped with a wire coat hanger." (T. 637). His findings as a result of his examination of the victim, were consistent with the history that she gave him. (T. 640). Walter Bodie, chemist, Metro-Dade, testified as to evidence of cocaine seized from Defendant's apartment. (T. 661-681). Teresa Merit, serologist, Metro-Dade, testified there was no evidence of Defendant's sperm, which was consistent with Bistories testimony that he only performed oral sex upon her. (T. 682-694).

Detective Simmons, Metro-Dade, was Detective Taber's supervisor. (T. 709-711). Defendant executed a Miranda Rights Waiver Form in the presence of both Detectives Simmons and Taber. (SR. 30; T. 719-725). The trial court duly found that Defendant's statements were freely and voluntarily given. (T. 726).

-12-

Defendant stated that he hugged and kissed B**arriers** and then asked her to disrobe in front of him "...<u>as a demonstration of</u> <u>her love for him</u>." (T. 737). She became frightened and ran into the bathroom. (T. 737-738). Defendant followed and again instructed her to get undressed. (T. 738). His intentions were honorable, "...<u>he just wanted to instill trust in his daughter</u>." (T. 738). B**arriers** refused to cooperate. (T. 739).

At this point Defendant became angry "because she wasn't doing as he said." (T. 739). He forced her to look at pornographic magazines he kept in the bathroom. (T. 739). At the same time he fondled her breasts and vagina with his hand. (T. 739). He then grabbed her by the arm and pulled her into the bedroom. (T. 739). B**ernomi** was crying and "rather hysterical by this point." (T. 740).

He admitted striking her several times with the wire hanger because she refused to get undressed. (T. 740). He admitted performing oral sex on her vagina, so as to overcome her shyness towards him. (T. 741). He admitted biting her vagina. (T. 742). He threatened to do it again if she wasn't quiet. (T. 742). He admitted inserting his finger into her rectum after he had dipped it in Benzocaine. (T. 742-743). He denied inserting cocaine into this area. (T. 743). He claimed he didn't use cocaine that night. (T. 743). He admitted he inserted his tongue into the rectal cavity. (T. 744).

-13-

He admitted that he told her that "...<u>it was his job as a father,</u> to teach her about love, and therefore she should submit to him and to have <u>sexual intercourse with him</u>." (T. 745). It was his belief that once his daughters reached the age of thirteen or fourteen, he should indoctrinate them in the ways of sex on an ongoing basis. (T. 746). Defendant, because of B**ernetics**'s emotional state, asked her if she felt like she had been raped. (T. 747). B**ernetics** apparently responded "yes, daddy." (T. 747). Defendant said he then apologized to her and that he was sorry she <u>misinterpreted</u> his sexual relations with her. (T. 747). He claimed to have attempted to calm B**ernetics**' by telling her he had done <u>similar</u> things in a sexual way with her sister T**ermin** when she was a teenager." (T. 747).

His daughter remained hysterical, and he called Celeste in to attempt to calm her. (T. 748). He told Detective Simmons he threw the wire hanger away in a dumpster outside his apartment. (T. 749). Defendant then confessed extensively as to his sexual advances to Toronomov (T. 749-750). Defendant declined to give a formal statement because he was too emotionally upset at this point. (T. 751). He did demonstrate the configuration he bent the wire hanger into. (T. 753).

The jury found Defendant guilty of Sexual Battery as to Count I charged in the Information. (T. 867). It found him not

-14-

guilty of Sexual Battery charged in Counts II and III. (T. 867-868). It found him guilty of possession of Cocaine as charged in the Information. (T. 868).

The State moved to depart from the Sentencing Guidelines on the following grounds:

MR. WALLEISA: We do not have a motion pending to depart the sentence and guidelines.

Presumative [sic] guidelines, Judge. Based upon the crime that he was convicted of before and had five and a half years. State has filed a motion to depart from the sentence of guidelines. Grounds for that is, that is alleged that the defendant took advantage of his, on the victim, his daughter, and in the motion we cited Turner and Williams have a couple of additional cases.

In support of that, Hawkins versus State found at 522 So.2d 488, in the First District, March 17th, 1988. And Gopoel G-O-P-O-E-L, found at 13 Fla. Law Weekly, 2693, December 23rd, 1988. The Third District Court of Appeals.

In addition, Judge, the state alleged in its motion to depart from the sentencing guideline that the defendant's pattern behavior demonstrates a pattern of from non-violence to violence. Citing Kyes versus State and Mayes versus State.

The basis for that, Judge, we have certified copies of prior convictions which the defendant was convicted carrying a concealed firearm, a nonviolent felony. He is now being convicted of sexual battery personal injury crime. It's a second-degree felony. Third basis for the State's motion to depart is the possibility of longlasting traumatic effects on the victim's son who was present during the crime. The victim's son who was present in the apartment during the commission of the crime upon the victim in this case, Bandwidth Bandwidth And we've cited the cases. David versus State is supporting that demonstration. The fourth basis for the motion to depart is no longer applicable.

(T. 872-873).

The trial court's concerns with Defendant's sexual abuse of his family members was established as part of the record:

THE COURT: What concerns me is the man now has certain grandchildren, and when he's out, he's going to start the same thing with his grandchildren because he has a duty to do this.

MR. WALLEISA: And he's going to start on somebody else's children, and they're not his grandchildren. And he's going to find himself another schoolteacher who will try to get him some more fifth grade teachers. I don't know what he's doing. I thought I can go up one step. Why can't I go up one step without a reason?

MR. WALLEISA: That went into effect October 1st 1988, for crimes committed that day, Judge. This crime was committed in 1987.

(T. 880).

The record then exhibits the following reason for departure:

MR. WALLEISA: Judge, the testimony from the witness stand was very clear that she went there to look for her father to introduce him to her boyfriend and his grandson.

THE COURT: <u>To reconcile, to introduce him to her</u> boyfriend and grandson.

MR. WALLEISA: To reestablish relations with her father.

THE COURT: Forget about the rape. I'm going to find it sufficient.

MR. CARTER: I don't know exactly what they are.

THE COURT: <u>That the violation of the familial</u> relationship, that there was a familial authority in trust between the defendant and the victim, his daughter.

MR. CARTER: Based on?

THE COURT: <u>Based on a father/daughter relationship and</u> all the surrounding circumstances.

MR. CARTER: Judge, I would ask you to elaborate on surrounding and circumstances, so when I take this to appeal, I won't have to be asked to come on a second time to ask what's surrounding and circumstances.

What is surrounding and circumstances?

THE COURT: <u>What about the pattern?</u> <u>What happened</u> with the first daughter, the older daughter and then going with the second daughter?

MR. WALLEISA: Judge, I would be --

MR. CARTER: You'd ask the jury not to consider that to reach a verdict.

THE COURT: I know what I asked them. I'm not trying to reach a verdict. A verdict has been reached already.

MR. WALLEISA: I have an agreement with Mr. Carter that that would be a crime that he was not convicted, therefore, that could not be considered.

THE COURT: I can't consider it?

MR. WALLEISA: No, Judge. That is opposed to the familial relationship.

MR. CARTER: Do what you want and I'll appeal you.

MR. WALLEISA: It's your record.

THE COURT: State will withdraw the order.

MR. CARTER: I'd like this typed up quickly.

MR. WALLEISA: I'll make notes so I won't make any mistakes as I understand it.

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